
    

Agendas and minutes of Personnel Commission meeting are available at the District’s website, www.berkeleyschools.net.  Also, in accordance with the Brown Act and Government Code 
§ 54957.5 (b)(1), writings that are related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting, that are public records not otherwise exempt from disclosure and that are distributed 
less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the time the writings are distributed to at least the majority of Commissioners.  The public may 
request copies of the records at the District’s Human Resources office at 2020 Bonar Street, Berkeley, CA  94702.  

 
 
 

Berkeley Unified School District 
The Board Room, 1231 Addison Street,  

Berkeley CA 94702 
 

Personnel Commission 
Heidi Goldstein, Chairperson                    Soli Alpert, Vice-Chairperson                    Isaiah Roter, Commissioner        

Erin Arinez, Secretary  
 

Meeting Agenda 
May 28th, 2025 
4:30 – 7:30 pm 

 
1.      Call to Order               Chairperson Goldstein 

2.      Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum                                  Secretary Arinez 

3.      Public Comments (15-minute limit)           Public 
This is an opportunity for the public to comment on Personnel Commission business, not on the agenda. The time limit is five minutes 
 per individual and a total of fifteen minutes per subject.  No action shall be taken by the Commission.  
 

4.      Approval & Adoption of Agenda              Chairperson Goldstein 
 
5.      Approval of Meeting Minutes            Chairperson Goldstein 

Approve the Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes for the following: 

a) April 17th, Special Meeting Minutes, p. 2-5 
b) April 23rd, Regular Meeting Minutes, p. 6-8 

 

6.  Reports 
a) Union          Union Representatives 
b) District Reports                           District Representatives 
c) Commissioners Reports        Commissioners 
d) Personnel Director        Secretary Arinez 

  New Hires and Examinations administered in the month of April 2025, p.9  
 

7. Consent Items         Chairperson Goldstein 
It is recommended that the Personnel Commission consider approving a number of agenda items as a Consent list.  Consent items are routine 
in nature and can be enacted in one motion without further discussion.   
Ratification of Eligibility Lists 
a) Classified Personnel Supervisor, p.10 
b) Educational Occupational Therapist, p.11 
c) Grounds Gardener, p.12 

d) Instructional Assistant II, SPED p.13 
e) Instructional Tech BASP, p.14 
f) Payroll Specialist p.15 

8. Conference Item             Chairperson Goldstein 
These items are presented for discussion and action and may be carried over from a previous meeting. 

a) Step Advance Request, B. Castillo Pineda Attachment A (p.16-20) 
b) Step Advance Request, K. Kersey Attachment B (p.21-27) 
c) Step Advance Request, P. Regan Attachment C (p.28-33) 

 
9. Public Hearing: Education Code § 45253 – Personnel Commission Budget, 2025- 2026   Attachment D (p.34-37) 

The Personnel Commission will hold a second reading and a public hearing regarding the  
2025-2026 fiscal year budget. 

 

10. Closed Session             Chairperson Goldstein 
Performance Evaluation of the Executive Director, Classified Personnel Government Code § 54954.5(e) 
 

11. Report from Closed Session           Chairperson Goldstein 
 

12. Public Comments (15-minute limit)           Public 
This is an opportunity for the public to comment on Personnel Commission business, not on the agenda. The time limit is five minutes 
 per individual and a total of fifteen minutes per subject.  No action shall be taken by the Commission. 
 

13. Next Meeting              Chairperson Goldstein 
              Follow-up items for the next Personnel Commission Meeting. 

 
14.  Adjournment              Chairperson Goldstein 

http://www.berkeleyschools.net/


Berkeley Unified School District 
Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 23rd, 2025 – 4:30 p.m. 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held in a hybrid format, live in the Board Room and via Zoom meeting
#811 4287 6822. The meeting was called to order at 4:36 p.m.

2. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Goldstein, Vice-Chairperson Alpert and Commissioner Roter were present,
and a quorum was established.

3. Public Comments
Pauline Follansbee, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, commented on the
$7.8 million district-wide budget cuts and noted that the Personnel Commission budget,
being part of the general fund, must also reflect the necessary reductions. SBAC is
considering the elimination of the vacant Classified Personnel Supervisor position as a
budget solution.
Jennifer Shanoski, BUSD School Board Director, reiterated the need for budget cuts,
highlighting an increase in the Personnel Commission’s 2024-25 budget. Director
Shanoski requested the Personnel Commission’s budget reflect the sacrifices being made
across the District.
Mildred Scherr, BCCE Vice-President, expressed support for the reclassification request
for the Library Media Specialists.
Daniel Brownson, Clerical Assistant III, commented on the high costs of contracted
paraprofessional staffing and suggested that direct hiring could save substantial funds.

4. Approval & Adoption of Agenda
Chairperson Goldstein asked to pull item 7g for discussion.
The amended agenda was approved unanimously.

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes
a) March 26th, 2025 Meeting Minutes
Commissioner Roter noted a typographical error in the District Report and requested
the addition of “per year” after $27k in item 9.
Commissioner Roter moved to approve item 5a as amended; Vice-Chairperson Alpert
seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

6. Reports
a) Unions
None.

b) District Reports
None.

UNOFFICIAL VERSION

2



c) Commissioner Reports
Chairperson Goldstein reported that the California Department of Education (CDE)
questioned the legitimacy of her appointment as Commissioner. In response, Personnel
Commission staff submitted supporting documentation to the CDE, confirming that the
appointment process was conducted in accordance with proper procedures.
Chairperson Goldstein also announced her intention to attend the SBAC meeting to
advocate for the needs of the Personnel Commission, specifically regarding the
Classified Personnel Supervisor position. Additionally, she will hold office hours on May
8th at Belmo Café.

d) Personnel Executive Director
Secretary Arinez reported on personnel activity for March, highlighting a total of 220
exams, averaging 10.5 per day, resulting in six new hires and one promotion. She
provided an update on the layoff process, noting that 172 classified layoff notices were
issued with 53 subsequently rescinded; hearings related to the layoffs are scheduled for
April 30 and May 1. Ms. Arinez reported that discussions are underway to streamline
the hiring process to reduce reliance on contractors for high-vacancy classifications such
as IT BASP and IA SPED. Ms. Arinez announced the Classified Employee Recognition
Event is scheduled for May 22.

7. Consent Items
Ratification of eligibility lists.

a) Attendance Technician
b) Human Resources Technician
c) Instructional Assistant II, SPED
d) Instructional Tech, BASP

e) Nutrition Services Satellite Operator I
f) Senior Communications Officer
g) Senior Workers Compensation Specialist

Item 7g was pulled for discussion. 

Chairperson Goldstein observed an upward trend in both the number of applicants and 
the testing interval. She noted that six exams were administered for the Senior 
Workers Compensation Specialist recruitment but only one candidate qualified for the 
eligibility list. Secretary Arinez acknowledged the low applicant turnout but confirmed 
it was sufficient to proceed with the recruitment; hiring managers have requested that 
the vacancy be reposted to attract a broader pool of candidates.  

Vice-Chairperson Alpert moved to approve items 7 a-g; Commissioner Roter seconded 
the motion, 
Approved 3-0 

8. Conference Items
a) Establishment of New Classification – Library Specialist
Secretary Arinez outlined her rationale for recommending the establishment of the new
Library Specialist classification, emphasizing the expanded scope of responsibilities,
including budget management, technology integration, community event coordination,

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
April 23, 2025 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

3



and leadership in literacy programs. The Board approved the duties associated with the 
new classification on April 9. During the Personnel Commission’s review, particular 
attention was given to the education and experience requirements. After discussion, the 
Commission agreed to require two years of library or related experience, removing the 
specification for “educational” experience to enhance clarity and relevance. To aid in 
evaluating applicants, supplemental questions will be included on the application to 
help staff assess the relevance of candidates’ experience. The creation of the new 
classification received strong support from the department manager, staff, and the 
public. 

Commissioner Roter made a motion adopt the classification for Library Specialist and 
salary placement recommendation on Schedule 56, range 51; Vice-Chairperson Alpert 
seconded the motion, 

Approved, 3-0 

b) Reclassification Request – Library Media Specialist
Following the approval of the new Library Specialist classification, Secretary Arinez
recommended reclassifying the incumbent Library Media Specialists to reflect their
expanded duties. Jessica Lee, Library Coordinator, acknowledged the sensitivity of the
timing given ongoing layoff discussions but emphasized that the request for
reclassification had been submitted over two years ago. She also noted that the
estimated $80,000 salary impact would be fully funded through BSEP, a library-specific
funding source, rather than the general fund. The Personnel Commission agreed the
reclassification was both overdue and essential.

Vice-Chairperson Alpert made a motion to approve the reclassification of all incumbent 
Library Media Specialists to the new Library Specialist classification; Commissioner Roter 
seconded the motion, 
Approved, 3-0  

c) 2025-26 Personnel Commission Budget 1st Reading
The Personnel Commission reviewed two budget reduction proposals—one calling for a
2% cut and the other for a 4% cut from the current budget. Central to the discussion
was the potential elimination of the vacant supervisor position, which would represent a
25% reduction in staff. The Commissioners requested a detailed analysis for the next
meeting, including a mapping of the supervisor’s duties to other HR classifications, an
evaluation of the cost and operational impact of eliminating or replacing the position,
and consideration of whether the responsibilities could be absorbed by the Executive
Director or other existing roles. BCCE leadership encouraged the Personnel Commission
to demonstrate partnership by seriously considering reductions, particularly given the
supervisor position remains unfilled. Staff noted that the vacancy is currently being
covered through overtime and out-of-class assignments, resulting in significant
additional costs.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
April 23, 2025 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

4



d) 2025-26 Personnel Commission Meeting Schedule
The Personnel Commission will continue to hold its regular meetings on the last 
Wednesday of each month when possible. However, due to the November recess, 
the Commissioners agreed to reschedule that month’s meeting to Monday, 
November 17.

Vice-Chairperson Alpert made a motion to approve the tentative 2025-26 meeting 
schedule; Commissioner Roter seconded the motion, 
Approved, 3-0  

9. Closed Session
The Personnel Commission went into closed session at 6:38 PM.

10. Report from Closed Session
The Personnel Commission reconvened at 6:58 PM. Chairperson Goldstein reported the
Commissioners had discussed the first interim performance evaluation of the Executive
Director Classified Personnel and gave direction.

11. Public Comments
None.

12. Next Meeting
A special meeting of the Personnel Commission will be held on May 15th at 11AM at the
Parker Street location. The next regular meeting will be held on May 28th at 4:30PM in
the Boardroom.

13. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:03 PM.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
April 23, 2025 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

5



Berkeley Unified School District 
Personnel Commission Special Meeting Minutes 

April 17th, 2025 – 11:00 am 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held in the Parker Street Conference Room (1005 Parker Street) and was
called to order at 11:05 a.m.

2. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Goldstein, Vice-Chairperson Alpert, and Commissioner Roter were present, and
a quorum was established.

3. Public Comments
Heidi Goldstein, Chairperson of the BUSD Personnel Commission, addressed a recent
correspondence received by Secretary Arinez from the California Department of Education
(CDE). The letter, dated mid-November, stated that Chairperson Goldstein’s term as joint
appointee had expired and requested documentation regarding the District’s plans to fill the
position. In response, Secretary Arinez consulted with CSCPA, union leadership, district staff,
and legal counsel to seek clarification. The CDE letter further indicated that Chairperson
Goldstein should not serve as a commissioner until the issue is resolved. Consequently,
Chairperson Goldstein recommended revising the meeting agenda to include discussion and
action on this matter.

4. Approval & Adoption of Agenda
Commissioner Roter moved to amend the agenda to discuss the item brought forward in
public comment as the Commissioners have deemed it an emergency situation; Vice-
Chairperson Alpert seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0.
Commissioner Roter suggested moving the Closed Session to a future meeting so that all
Commissioners can participate. Chairperson Goldstein asked to refrain from deciding on the
Closed Session until later in the meeting.

5. Discussion Item (amended agenda item)
a.) California Department of Education Letter: Appointment Procedure of the Joint Appointed

Commissioner
The Personnel Commission discussed a letter from the CDE concerning the appointment
process of commissioners. The letter, dated November 2024, indicated that Chairperson Heidi
Goldstein’s term as joint appointee was no longer valid because the district had not followed
the proper legal procedures for appointments in pre-1965 merit districts. The Executive
Director explained that, although the District had been following a longstanding practice where
the District and Union each appoint one commissioner and jointly appoint the third, the CDE
requires all appointments to be made by the State Superintendent unless the union petitions

UNOFFICIAL VERSION

6



for an election to confirm the current process. Until this issue is resolved, Chairperson Goldstein 
is not considered a valid commissioner. 

The Personnel Commission discussed a letter from the CDE concerning the appointment 
process of commissioners. The letter, dated November 2024, indicated that Chairperson Heidi 
Goldstein’s term as joint appointee was no longer valid because the district had not followed 
the proper legal procedures for appointments in pre-1965 merit districts. The Executive 
Director explained that, although the District had been following a longstanding practice where 
the District and Union each appoint one commissioner and jointly appoint the third, the CDE 
requires all appointments to be made by the State Superintendent unless the union petitions 
for an election to confirm the current process. Until this issue is resolved, Chairperson Goldstein 
is not considered a valid commissioner. 

The CDE outlined a process for reappointing the joint commissioner, including submitting an 
online application, obtaining a letter of support from the Union and District, and providing 
relevant board and commission documentation. The Personnel Commission agreed to follow 
this process to ensure compliance with state law. The Commissioners raised questions about 
the availability of historical records and the broader implications for other Commissioners’ 
appointments. The Personnel Commission committed to resolving the matter promptly to 
maintain proper governance and legal standing. 

Commissioner Roter made a motion to recuse Heidi Goldstein as Commissioner for this and 
subsequent meetings until she can be appointed, reappointed or reinstated through evidence 
forthcoming her appointment was proper; Vice-Chairperson Alpert seconded the motion, 

Approved, 2-1 

Vice-Chairperson Alpert assumed the role of Chairperson for the remainder of the meeting. 

b.) 2025-26 Personnel Commission Budget 
Secretary Arinez announced that the first reading of the draft Personnel Commission budget 
will be presented at the April 23 meeting. The initial draft, which includes no staffing changes 
and only reflects the salary difference between the current and former Executive Director 
Classified Personnel, results in an estimated $20,000 savings. In response to feedback from 
Pauline Follansbee, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, regarding the lack of 
proposed reductions, three budget proposals were developed for consideration. Proposal 1 
maintains the current staffing and service levels; Proposal 2 introduces targeted expenditure 
cuts, including elimination of job posting subscriptions, suspension of staff development and 
conferences, and cancellation of the Classified recognition event; and Proposal 3 incorporates 
all of Proposal 2’s cuts along with the elimination of the vacant Classified Personnel Supervisor 
position, representing a 12% staffing reduction. 
The projected impacts of each proposal were discussed. Proposal 1 would maintain current 
service levels, including recruitment timelines of five days to close a position and approximately 
eight weeks to complete a recruitment. Proposal 2 would slightly reduce service capacity due to 
fewer recruitments being run. Proposal 3 would significantly impact recruitment timelines and 
overall deliverables due to the staff reduction. Additionally, it was noted that the potential 

Personnel Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
April 17, 2025 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

7



layoff of the Administrative Assistant III position, funded by BERRA, would not generate general 
fund savings. The Commissioners emphasized the importance of ensuring budget accuracy and 
transparency regarding position funding sources. 
The Commissioners raised concerns about Proposal 3 because of its operational impacts. While 
the District has referenced the Union as the proponent of eliminating the Classified Personnel 
Supervisor position, questions remain about whether it is a joint proposal. There was also 
discussion about SBAC meeting recordings and the limited opportunity for public comment. It 
was noted the Superintendent clarified to SBAC that removing the vacant supervisor position 
would require coordination with the Personnel Commission, as it is not a District employee 
position. Before making any decisions regarding the Supervisor position, the Commissioners 
requested a detailed breakdown of the role’s duties and its relevance to overall operations, 
exploring the potential reassignment of duties to other existing classification such as HR Tech, 
Senior HR Tech, HR Specialist or Senior HR Analyst.  

Ms. Arinez explained that most HR roles are now focused solely on HR and do not support 
Personnel Commission functions, with the exception of possibly the HR Tech. The 
Commissioners emphasized that the intent is not to reduce overall staff but to consider 
reorganization. The group also discussed the optics of eliminating the Classified recognition 
event during layoffs and expressed interest in restoring it if other savings can be found. 
Additionally, the Commissioners highlighted the importance of transparency and proper 
notification to the Board of Education regarding budget proposals, recommending direct 
communication and a clear paper trail to ensure compliance with Education Code 
requirements. 

6. Closed Session
Due to time constraints, this item was removed from the agenda and will be on a future
meeting agenda.

7. Report from Closed Session
None.

8. Public Comment
None.

9. Next Meeting
The next regular Personnel Commission meeting will be held on April 23rd, 2025, at 4:30 pm in
the Boardroom.

10. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 12:57 pm.

Personnel Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
April 17, 2025 UNOFFICIAL VERSION

8



Examinations Administered in the Month of April 2025: 

Classification
Training & 
Experience Written Oral Performance

Instructional Assistant II, Special Education 17

Nutrition Services Satellite Operator I 8

Instructional Technician - Before & After School Program 13 6

Senior Workers Compensation Specialist 2

Classified Personnel Supervisor 4

Educational Occupational Therapist 4

Payroll Specialist 19 6

Instructional Assistant II, Special Education 17 6

School Bus Driver 1

TOTALS 49 38 8 8 103

New Hires/New Assignments/Promotions Processed in the Month of April 2025: 

Name- Employment Type- Classification- Location/Dept.

Barbero-Reyes, Gaddy
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Sylvia Mendez

Budge, Rachel
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Emerson

Bujold, Taro New Hire Irrigation Specialist Facilities, Maintenance & Operations

Cochran, Tobias New Hire Instructional Assistant II, SPED Berkeley High

Dutt, Kishan New Hire Administrative Assistant I Curriculum & Development

Gordon, Jennifer
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Malcolm X

Howe, Deborah
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Rosa Parks

Kadner, Rachel
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Ruth Acty

Neideffer, Jessica
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Cragmont

Ortega, Luis New Hire Maintenance Technician Facilities, Maintenance & Operations

Overlid, Jacqueline
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Washington

Reich, Jessica
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Thousand Oaks

Sasamoto, Karen
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Oxford

Singh Sidhu, Anumant New Hire Custodian I Martin Luther King Middle

Wendt, Mardawn
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist Arts Magnet

Williams, Zoe
Promotion 
(Reclassification) Library Specialist John Muir

Woods, Tina New Hire School Bus Driver Transportation

Zamorano, Fernando New Hire School Bus Driver Transportation

9



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Classified Personnel Supervisor
(Open and Promotional)

Written Examination:
Oral Examination:

April 15, 2025 
 May 15, 2025 

(4 exams administered) 
(3 exams administered)

Promotional
1 Brian Westover
2 Nestor Aliga Jr

Open
1 Ellaine Reyes

Erin Arinez Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  May 28 , 2025 to expire May 27, 2026 

10



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Educational Occupational Therapist
(Open)

Written Examination: April 15, 2025 (4 exams administered)
Oral Examination: May 6, 2025 (2 exams administered)

Open
1 Allison Brekke
2 Ann Barden

Erin Arinez Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  May 28, 2025 to expire May 27, 2026 

11



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Grounds Gardener
(Open and Promotional)

Performance Examination: May 7, 2025 (9 exams administered)
Oral Examination: May 7, 2025 (9 exams administered)

Promotional
1 Larry Reyna Jr

Open
1 Felipe Torres Zurita
2 Kevin Chan
3 Maureen Burke
4 Edgar Sandoval Cervantes
5 Ruben Anaya
6 Victor Perez

Erin Arinez Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission: May 28, 2025 to expire May 27, 2026

12



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Instructional Assistant II_Special Education
(Open)

Training & Experience Assessment: April 23, 2025 (17 exams administered)
Written Examination: April 30, 2025 (6 exams administered)

Open
1 Mary Chang
2 Guadalupe Madrigal Ochoa
3 Hanene Othmane
4 Shanti Kumar
5 Tequilla Warner
6 Amalya-Jenyffer Love

Erin Arinez Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  May 28, 2025 to expire May 27, 2026 

13



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Instructional Technician - Before & After School Program
(Open)

Training & Experience Assessment: April 29, 2025
Written Examination: May 6, 2025

(13 exams administered)
(6 exams administered)

Open
1 Alicia Valenciana
2 Warda Egeh
3 Christian Zamora
4 Lindsay Navarro

Erin Arinez Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission: May 28, 2025 to expire May 27, 2026

14



Berkeley Unified School District
Merit System

Eligibility List for :  Payroll Specialist
(Open)

Written Examination: April 17, 2025 (19 exams administered)
Oral Examination: April 24, 2025 (6 exams administered)

Open
1 Stephanie Duchin
2 Nadia Nasrudinzada
3 Yu Peng Zhang
4 Pridhvi Zoro
5 Jacqueline Epner

Erin Arinez Date
Secretary, Personnel Commission

Heidi Goldstein Date
Chairperson, Personnel Commission

List Established by Personnel Commission:  May 28, 2025 to expire May 27, 2026 

15



PERSONNEL COMMISSION  
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

May 28th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM 8.a. 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR ADVANCED STEP PLACEMENT FOR BRANDON CASTILLO PINEDA 
FOR DELIVERY DRIVER  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Brandon Castillo Pineda has submitted the attached request, along with supporting documents, 
for an advanced step placement at Step 4. Mr. Castillo Pineda has over 7 years of experience 
as a delivery driver, including certifications in forklift operation and food handling, which are 
essential for his position. He is highly qualified and will be a great asset to the District. 

However, according to the Step Advance rubric presented to the Commission on June 26, 2024, 
and approved by the Commissioners, as well as Merit Rule 70.100.1, a Step Advance may only be 
granted if the recruitment process for the position has proven to be challenging.  

Based on the criteria, currently, the Delivery Driver position is not deemed difficult to recruit for. 
The recruitment, posted on December 4, 2024, generated 1,066 hits and 68 applicants, with 8 of 
them making the eligibility list. The District currently has three positions in this classification, with 
just one vacancy at the time of the recruitment. 

70.100.1 Initial Placement 

All new employees shall be appointed at the hiring rate for the class as approved by the 
Commission. The hiring rate shall be the first step of the schedule except for classes where 
recruitment efforts have indicated difficulty in recruiting at that step. An accelerated hiring rate 
may be set, with the approval of the Board and the Commission, at any step of the schedule of 
the class.  

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION  
Based on the information and criteria set for the Step Advanced rubric, a step advance for Mr. 
Castillo Pineda is not recommended.  

ATTACHMENT A

16



PERSONNEL COMMISSION 
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ADVANCED STEP RUBRIC 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Merit Rules Language 

70.100.1 Initial Placement 
All new employees shall be appointed at the hiring rate for the class as approved by the Commission. The 
hiring rate shall be the first step of the schedule except for classes where recruitment efforts have 
indicated difficulty in recruiting at that step. An accelerated hiring rate may be set, with the approval of 
the Board and the Commission, at any step of the schedule of the class. 

Contributing Factors to a Difficult Recruitment 
1) The number of applicants is low.
• Lack of interest from a particular applicant pool due to classification’s low wage (Nutrition

Services, I.A.’s -Para educators, School Campus Aides)
• Low FTE (part-time) (Instructional Tech- BASP’s, Instructional Specialists, School Campus Aides)
• Minimum Qualifications are particular / licenses and certifications required (School Bus drivers, certain

Maintenance positions)

2) Number of vacancies.
• More than one vacancy in a classification can make recruitment more challenging.
• Recruiting for one vacancy when the MQs are very specific can also make recruitment

challenging (Irrigation specialist, School Bus Drivers).

3) Number of ranks on the eligibility list.
• Eligibility lists with fewer than three ranks can make it difficult for the hiring manager to fill the

position and may cause the position to be posted a second time to generate a fresh list.

4) Number of recruitments it takes to fill a vacancy.
• Sometimes, the candidates on the list are no longer available when the hiring manager contacts

them to interview, and then we have to run another recruitment. We then have to recruit
multiple times for the same position.

5) High turnover.
• Some positions have a high turnover or leaves (SSOs, IT-BASPs, and School Campus Aides).

6) Bilingual recruitment challenges

7) External market factors/ competition (tech/private sector)

Advanced Step Request Evaluation Criteria 
1) Education qualification for 1 step (not to exceed one step regardless of the number of

degrees)
• Completed Degree from an accredited college or university related to the minimum

qualifications of the position.
• Training and Certificate related to the position (Food handler certificate, SPED

certificate, School Safety Officer certificate, Bus Driver, Irrigation, and Maintenance
are a few examples).

2) Experience
• One step for every year of directly related experience, not exceeding four steps.



Brandon Castillo
Delivery Driver 

March 3, 2025 Nutrition Services

ATTACHMENT A

18

Brandon Castillo

Brandon Castillo
4

Brandon Castillo
CIS 1 Introduction to Computer Information Systems

Brandon Castillo
7 Years of Delivery Driver and manual labor experience



May 6th, 2025 

Re : Request For Advanced Step Placement  

Personnel Commission Chairperson  

I would like to begin this request by saying how great my time at Berkeley Unified School 
District has been to me ever since I’ve been hired.  

I would like to request an Advanced Step Placement at Step 4 on the Classified Salary Schedule 
for the Delivery Driver position. 

My attached resume will reflect I have over 7 years of combined  Delivery Driver experience as 
well as the skills and certifications needed to do my job on a daily basis 

During my time at Castillo’s Concrete I have delivered construction materials and delivered to 
multiple locations around the Bay Area for around 5 years. I have also worked manual labor 
which included lifting heavy materials, concrete finishing, digging and framing. 

During my time at Jetro, I received my forklift certification and food handling certification, here 
I gained experience using the forklift, pallet jack, electric pallet scooter, as well as how to handle 
food safely. At Jetro I was introduced to a large warehouse setting and heavy lifting of boxes of 
50 lbs minimum. I was here approximately 1 year 

During my time at Golden State Lumber, I was recertified in forklift and I was in a lumber 
warehouse environment stocking lumber and helping clients as well as delivering lumber bundles 
to job sites. I was here for approximately 1 year. 

I believe that my experience and certifications for my position support this request. 

For any additional information feel free to contact me via email or phone number below 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Brandon Castillo 
Delivery Driver Nutrition Services 

ATTACHMENT A

19



Brandon Castillo 

EXPERIENCE 

Golden State Lumber,  Newark CA— Forklift Driver/ Delivery 
Driver 
MAY 2020 - JANUARY 2021 

● During my time at GSL, I was a forklift driver that specialized in
building bundles of lumber for customers as well as loading and
delivering bundles of lumber to job sites. Here I received my
forklift certification as well as experience in a lumber warehouse
experience.

Jetro Cash & Carry Depot, Oakland CA— Associate/ Loader 
MAY 2019 - MAY  2020 

● At Jetro Cash & Carry I was a detail-oriented cashier with
experience handling large cash transactions accurately. Delivered
exceptional customer service by addressing complaints and
fulfilling requests. Assisted customers by safely loading food
products into their vehicles and actively promoted sales through
engaging interactions. At Jetro Cash & Carry  I received my
Forklift certification as well as my food handlers card. I gained
food warehouse and safe food handling experience during my
time here.

Castillo’s Concrete, Bay Area— Construction Worker 
JANUARY 2021 - PRESENT  

● Experienced in construction with skills in framework assembly,
Concrete pouring and finishing,  site excavation, and contract
management for projects valued in the multiple thousands of dollars.
Drafted and typed contracts for the company and regularly met with
clients to discuss and plan future projects. At Castillo’s Concrete I was
doing manual labor on a day to day basis as well as delivering
materials from and to job sites around the Bay Area .

EDUCATION 

Skyline High School, Oakland CA— High School Diploma 
AUGUST 2014 - MAY 2019 

Merritt Community College, Oakland CA 

AUGUST 2020 - JANUARY 2021

SKILLS 

​​Leadership 

​​Problem Solving  

​​Communication  

​​Adaptability  

​​Results-Oriented  

AWARDS 

4.0 Honor Roll 

LANGUAGES 

English 

Spanish  

Basic French 

ATTACHMENT A

20



PERSONNEL COMMISSION  
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

May 28th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM 8.b 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR ADVANCED STEP PLACEMENT FOR KARA KERSEY, INSTRUCTIONAL 
ASSISTANT II, SPED  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
The attached request and supporting documentation pertaining to the recommendation for 
advanced step placement for Ms. Kara Kersey, who is seeking to be placed at Step 5 on the 
Classified Salary Schedule for the Instructional Assistant II – Special Education position at 
Washington Elementary School. 

Ms. Kersey brings over 13 years of combined experience in education and youth services, with a 
background that spans both private and public sectors. Her previous roles include Lead 
Preschool Teacher at a private outdoor school, Afterschool Gardening and Art Educator for the 
City of Oakland Parks and Recreation, and most notably, a long-term substitute assignment as 
Instructional Assistant II – Special Education at Oxford Elementary within Berkeley Unified 
School District (BUSD). In this BUSD role, she provided one-on-one support to students with 
special needs and collaborated with educators and therapists to implement effective learning 
strategies. 

Ms. Kersey is also completing her Bachelor of Arts and Science in Interdisciplinary Studies 
through Prescott College and is expected to graduate in May 2025. Her educational 
background, combined with her practical experience supporting students with diverse needs, 
positions her as a highly qualified candidate for advanced step placement. 

As previously discussed at Personnel Commission meetings, the Instructional Assistant II – 
Special Education classification remains difficult to recruit for. The position has been identified 
as having open and ongoing recruitment status due to persistent vacancies and challenges 
attracting qualified applicants, particularly given current compensation levels. 

70.100.1 Initial Placement 
All new employees shall be appointed at the hiring rate for the class as approved by the 
Commission. The hiring rate shall be the first step of the schedule except for classes where 
recruitment efforts have indicated difficulty in recruiting at that step. An accelerated hiring rate 
may be set, with the approval of the Board and the Commission, at any step of the schedule of 
the class.  
Schedule 52  Step 1  Hourly  Step 2  Hourly  Step 3  Hourly  Step 4  Hourly  Step 5  Hourly 

Range 36 3903.58 23.93 4104.23 25.16 4314.66 26.45 4533.24 27.79 4761.62 29.19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION  
Grant the request for advanced step placement at Schedule 52/Range 36/Step 5. 

ATTACHMENT B

21



Advanced Step Placement Request 

Name:_______________________________________________________________ 

Classification:_________________________________________________________ 

Hire Date:_____________________________  Site:_____________________ 

Advanced Step Requested:  1    2    3    4    5  (circle one) 
*Please note that there is no step/increase after Step 5 until Longevity at 10 years.

1. Please include a letter to the Chairperson of the Personnel
Commission explaining why you are requesting Advanced Step
Placement.

2. Items that should be included with the request:

□ Resume (required) □ Diploma(s) □ Transcript(s) □ Certification(s)

Please note:  Any documents submitted to the Personnel Commission for their regularly scheduled 
PUBLIC meeting will be included in the PUBLIC agenda as required by the California Public Records 
Act or the Brown Act.  These items will be a matter of PUBLIC record and will not be returned to 

you.  Therefore please ensure that only copies are submitted. 

Units Type/Depth/Concentration 

Education Level: Some College 

Associates Degree 

Bachelor’s Degree 

Master’s Degree 

PhD/Doctorate 

Employment Type 
(Education, Government, Public, Private, etc) 

Experience Level: 1-2 years

3-5 years

6-9 years

10-15 years

15+ years 

ATTACHMENT B

22

Kara Kersey
Kara Kersey

Kara Kersey
Instructional Assistant II - Special Education 

Kara Kersey
05/12/2025

Kara Kersey
Washington Elementary

Kara Kersey
x

Kara Kersey
Graduated

Kara Kersey
124.50

Kara Kersey
Bachelors in Arts and Science/ Interdisplinary

Kara Kersey
Preschool Teacher Private and Instructional Assistant II – Special Education for BUSD

Kara Kersey
Afterschool Gardening and Art Teacher city of Oakland Parks and Recreation 

Kara Kersey

Kara Kersey

Kara Kersey



May 6, 2025 

Kara Kersey 

Re: Request for Advance Step Placement – Step 5 

Dear Commission Chairperson, 

I hope this message finds you well. I am writing to respectfully request Advance Step 
Placement at Step 5 on the Classified Salary Schedule for the Instructional Assistant II – 
Special Education position. 

With over 13 years of combined experience in education and youth services, I have had the 
privilege of serving in both leadership and direct service roles. My background includes 
working as a lead preschool teacher at a private school, an afterschool recreational leader 
for the City of Oakland, and serving prior to the COVID-19 pandemic as a long-term 
substitute Instructional Assistant II – Special Education at Oxford Elementary within BUSD, 
where I worked alongside Andrea Hosmer in a supportive public-school setting. 

I am currently completing my bachelor’s degree in arts and science, and I’m excited to 
share that I will be graduating in May 2025. I have included my most recent transcripts with 
this request, and my diploma will be arriving by mail in the coming weeks. 

I believe my experience and dedication to supporting students with diverse needs strongly 
align with the qualifications for Step 5 placement. I would be happy to provide any 
additional information or documentation as needed. You can reach me at the contact 
number listed above. 

Thank you so much for your time and thoughtful consideration of my request. 

Warmly, 
Kara Kersey 

ATTACHMENT B

23



KARA  KERSEY 

Positive and upbeat communicator with exceptional planning abilities and a passion for 
educating young minds. Adept at enhancing student capabilities through hands-on, 
personalized teaching techniques. Possesses in-depth knowledge of educational 
procedures to foster better understanding of subject areas and encourage holistic 
development. 

R E L E V A N T   E X P E R I E N C E 

Outdoor Preschool Teacher 
Berkeley Forest Teacher 

August 2022 – December 2024 

- Lead outdoor preschool classes for children aged 18 months to 6 years, promoting a safe and
healthy learning environment through nature exploration and play.
- Develop and facilitate immersive outdoor experiences, incorporating songs, stories, and nature-
based art projects to enhance engagement.
- Create outdoor curricula adaptable to all weather conditions, manage whole group experiences,
and meet individualized needs during unstructured play.
- Oversee daily setup/breakdown of the forest classroom, including handwashing stations, while
maintaining professional interpersonal communication with children, families, and staff.

Nursery Customer Service Specialist 
Florida Nursery Mart 

January 2020 – July 2022 

- Provided expert advice on the selection and care of plants, shrubs, and trees, enhancing
customer satisfaction through personalized service.
- Conducted planting, fertilizing, and maintenance of nursery plants, ensuring optimal health
and quality.
- Inspected plant health and identified signs of disease or pests, maintaining clean and organized
work areas.

ATTACHMENT B

24



Instructional Assistant Specialist II 
Berkeley Unified School District 

October 2017 – June 2020 

- Delivered one-on-one support to children with special needs, fostering a conducive learning
environment to develop essential life skills.
- Collaborated with physical therapists to assist students with various challenges, including
mobility, writing, and self-care tasks.

Lead Educator | Studio One Arts Center  
May 2010 – August 2019 

- Developed and executed curricula for elementary-aged students, providing a supportive and
explorative environment for artistic growth.
- Engaged with students and families to build community support and enhance the educational
experience.
- Served as the lead seasonal gardener, imparting knowledge of plant identification and vegetable
gardening.

Vocalist Performer | Oakland, CA | 2006 to present 

- Booked gigs, wrote, performed, and marketed original music at various venues.
- Offered voice and music lessons to aspiring artists, fostering their musical capabilities.

E D U C A T I O N 

Berkeley High School | Berkeley, CA | 2006 
Columbia College | Chicago, IL | Vocal Performance | 2006-08 
Merrit College | Oakland, CA | Horticulture Program | 2016-18 

Prescott College | Prescott, AZ Bachelors Online Program 2022-2025 

R E F E R E N C E S
Charlie Martin t | Caregiving & Connection Coordinator 
Ayo Chaney |  | Managing Director at Youth Spirit Works 

Oni Jahmora| g| Coco Doula Program Assistant 

ATTACHMENT B

25



FROM THE DESK OF 

Charlie Martin 
TEACHING ARTIST 

FORMERLY CAREGIVING & CONNECTION COORDINATOR AT BERKELEY FOREST SCHOOL 

December 2024 

To Whom it May Concern, 

I am pleased to write this letter of recommendation for Ka'Ra Kersey, who worked 
under my supervision and as my co-teacher in both toddler and preschool aged classes 
at Berkeley Forest School, from August 2022 through November 2024. During the time I 
had the privilege of working with her, Ka'Ra consistently demonstrated exceptional 
qualities that make her an outstanding educator and a valuable team member. 

Ka'Ra possesses a remarkable blend of curiosity, intelligence, compassion, and 
humility. Her self-motivation, punctuality, and strong work ethic were evident from the 
very start, and consistently reliable. She sought to improve her skills and knowledge by 
engaging actively in training and professional development. Her ability to absorb new 
information and immediately implement it into her practice is a testament to her 
dedication to both personal growth and the well-being of the children in her care. 

One of Ka'Ra's many standout qualities is an extraordinary ability to connect with her 
peers, work collaboratively, and contribute meaningfully to team discussions and 
activities. In fact, her teamwork skills are among the best I have encountered in my 
career in education. She is attentive, respectful, and eager in turn to support her 
colleagues in their professional development. Her natural curiosity serves her well in 
observing her colleagues and the classroom environment with an open mind, which 
allows her to continuously evolve her teaching practice. 

Ka'Ra is also deeply respected by the families of the children she works with. Her 
warmth, compassion, and excellent boundaries with the children create an atmosphere 
of trust and safety. It is no surprise that parents often remark on her ability to foster 
close, meaningful relationships with their children. Young children are naturally drawn 
to her, and she has an innate ability to form connections that are both nurturing and 
professional. 

In summary, Ka'Ra Kersey is an exemplary educator and caregiver, whose dedication, 
intelligence, and compassion make her a standout in the field. I have no doubt that she 
will continue to positively impact the lives of children and families in any future role 
she takes on. It is without reservation that I highly recommend Ka'Ra for any position 
she pursues in the field of education. Please feel free to contact me if you would like 
any further information, by email or via the phone number provided below. 

Sincerely, 

Charlie Martin

ATTACHMENT B

26



Ayo Chaney 
Managing Director 
Youth Spirit Works 

1/1/2025 

To Whom It May Concern, 

It is my pleasure to write this letter of reference for Kara Kersey, who generously volunteered 
her time and skills at Youth Spirit Works, where she mentored and taught singing classes to our 
teenage homeless youth. Kara’s contributions to our program were truly invaluable. 

Through her music sessions, Kara created a positive and welcoming environment where our 
teens could express themselves freely. She was able to use music not only as a tool for self-
expression but also as a means of building confidence and a sense of community among the 
participants. Kara’s genuine warmth and empathy helped establish a space where young people 
felt heard, supported, and uplifted. It was clear that she deeply cared for the well-being of the 
teens and was dedicated to their emotional and creative growth. 
Kara’s impact extended far beyond the singing classes. She took the time to mentor the youth, 
providing them with encouragement and guidance that fostered resilience and self-discovery. Her 
dedication to our mission, paired with her ability to connect with and motivate the teens, left a 
lasting impression on everyone involved. 

I have no hesitation in recommending Kara for any role involving teaching, mentoring, or 
working with young people. Her passion for making a difference, combined with her outstanding 
musical talent and personal commitment, makes her a true asset to any organization. 

If you have any further questions or need additional information, please feel free to reach out to 
me at ayoheniachaney@gmail.com. 

Sincerely, 
Ayo Chaney 
Managing Director 
Youth Spirit Works 

ATTACHMENT B

27

mailto:ayoheniachaney@gmail.com


PERSONNEL COMMISSION  
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

May 28th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM 8.c 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR ADVANCED STEP PLACEMENT FOR PATRICIA REGAN, INSTRUCTIONAL 
ASSISTANT II, SPED  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The attached request and supporting documents are for advanced step placement for Ms. Patricia 
Regan, who is seeking to be placed at Step 5 on the Classified Salary Schedule for the position of 
Instructional Assistant II, Special Education (SPED), at Berkeley Unified School District. 

Ms. Regan holds a bachelor’s degree in Interdisciplinary Studies and has completed graduate-level 
coursework in education. She brings over 15 years of professional experience, including more than 
7 years in K-12 educational settings. Her resume highlights her work supporting students with 
special needs in both instructional and behavioral support roles, as well as her leadership 
experience in student programming and team supervision. 

This request is being considered under Personnel Commission Rule 70.100.1, which permits 
advanced step placement when recruitment for a classification proves challenging. The 
Instructional Assistant II, SPED position has been identified as difficult to fill, with persistent 
vacancies and open, continuous postings due to a shortage of qualified applicants and non-
competitive compensation levels. 

Ms. Regan’s qualifications and depth of experience make her a strong candidate for the role, and 
her step placement recommendation reflects both the value she brings to the district and the need 
to remain competitive in attracting and retaining experienced professionals in hard-to-fill positions. 

70.100.1 Initial Placement 
All new employees shall be appointed at the hiring rate for the class as approved by the Commission. 
The hiring rate shall be the first step of the schedule except for classes where recruitment efforts 
have indicated difficulty in recruiting at that step. An accelerated hiring rate may be set, with the 
approval of the Board and the Commission, at any step of the schedule of the class.  
Schedule 52  Step 1  Hourly  Step 2  Hourly  Step 3  Hourly  Step 4  Hourly  Step 5  Hourly 

Range 36 3903.58 23.93 4104.23 25.16 4314.66 26.45 4533.24 27.79 4761.62 29.19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION  
Grant the request for advanced step placement for Patricia Regan at Schedule 52/Range 36/Step 5. 

ATTACHMENT C

28



Advanced Step Placement Request 

Name:_______________________________________________________________ 

Classification:_________________________________________________________ 

Hire Date:_____________________________  Site:_____________________ 

Advanced Step Requested:  1    2    3    4    5  (

*Please note that there is no step/increase after Step 5 until Longevity at 10 years.

1. Please include a letter to the Chairperson of the Personnel
Commission explaining why you are requesting Advanced Step
Placement.

2. Please select documentation included with request:
□ Resume (required) □ Diploma(s) □ Transcript(s) □ Certification(s)

Please note:  Any documents submitted to the Personnel Commission for their regularly scheduled 
PUBLIC meeting will be included in the PUBLIC agenda as required by the California Public Records 
Act or the Brown Act.  These items will be a matter of PUBLIC record and will not be returned to 

you.  Therefore please ensure that only copies are submitted. 

Units Type/Depth/Concentration 

Education Level: Some College 

Associates Degree 

Bachelor’s Degree 

Master’s Degree 

PhD/Doctorate 

Employment Type 
(Education, Government, Public, Private, etc) 

Experience Level: 1-2 years

3-5 years

6-9 years

10-15 years

15+ years 

ATTACHMENT C

29



Sarah Goodwin <sarahgoodwin@berkeley.net>

Letter to Chairperson of the step commission
Delta Ohara Mon, May 19, 2025 at 2:48 PM
To: Sarah Goodwin <sarahgoodwin@berkeley.net>

Hi , the diplomas, transcripts and references I have forwarded speak to this issue.  I have approx forty years professional experience,
with 7-8 years in - school teaching experience (and I am working in a preschool right now, as ABA tutor). I also have significant
management experience; for four years I was residential manager of a childrens’ home (the clients were older teenagers). I also helped
to manage the mobile home park I lived in . And was mid management in a homeless shelter in Hayward (through BOSS). Approx 7
years of my working life, I have worked in Berkeley. I have basic asl, have been repeatedly assault response, 1st aid & cpr trained. I
have a gift for working with differently abled individuals and have never been hurt on a job. My longevity of experience in many different
disciplines, all sped and/or teaching related, make me a good step 5 candidate . MSc& Bsc, summa cum laude.   I am an artist and
have trained as a clown. I also sing.  I am very fit and travel by bicycle.  Yours PatriciaRegan 
Sent from my iPhone

ATTACHMENT C

30



ATTACHMENT C

31



ATTACHMENT C

32



ATTACHMENT C

32



PERSONNEL COMMISSION  
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

May 28th, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

SUBJECT:  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING OF THE 2025-2026 PERSONNEL COMMISSION 
BUDGET 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In accordance with Educa�on Code §45253, the Berkeley Unified School District Personnel 
Commission is required to prepare and hold a public hearing on its annual budget and 
subsequently submit the approved budget to the County Superintendent of Schools. 
This document represents the second reading of the proposed 2025–2026 Personnel Commission 
budget. Two budget proposals have been reviewed by the Commission: 

• Proposal 1 retains the current staffing structure with minor cost-saving adjustments,
resul�ng in a reduc�on of $32,271.86 from the prior year’s budget.

• Proposal 2 reflects a more significant reorganiza�on of the Commission’s staffing
structure, yielding a total reduc�on of $60,410.32 from the current year’s budget.

• Proposal 3 reflects the elimina�on of the Commission’s Classified Personnel Supervisor
posi�on, resul�ng in a total reduc�on of $180,878.36 from the current year’s budget.

Pursuant to the Educa�on Code, the Commission must approve the final budget by May 30, 2025. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION 

Conduct the required public hearing on May 28, 2025, in accordance with the California Educa�on 
Code. Following the hearing, approve the proposed budget and authorize its submission to the 
County Superintendent of Schools. 

ATTACHMENT D



ITEMS REQUESTED CODE
Current FY 2024-

2025
1st Proposal               
FY 2025-2026

2nd Proposal              
FY 2025-2026

3rd Proposal              
FY 2025-2026

Staffing FTE (including 2% raise):

1.0 FTE Executive Director, Including Statutory Benefits 2302/7403 $270,194.10 $245,184.23 $245,184.23 $245,184.23

1.0 FTE Executive Director, Including BERRA Salary/ Benefits BERRA          $13,674.81           $285,355.18 $258,859.04 $258,859.04 $258,859.04

1.0 FTE Classified Personnel Supervisor , Including Statutory Benefits 2302/7403 $169,452.97 $156,795.25

1.0 FTE Classified Pers.Supervisor, Including BERRA Salary/Benefits BERRA             $8,611.25 $178,920.04 $165,406.50

1.0 FTE PC Analyst, Including  Salary/Benefits (Range 59 step 3-Salary 
Schedule 56) 2302/7403 $117,535.17

1.0 FTE PC Analyst, Including BERRA Salary/Benefits (Range 59 step 3-
Salary Schedule 56) BERRA             $6,932.87 $124,468.04

1.0 FTE Human Resources Technician, Including Statutory Benefits 2402/7403 $110,632.34 $113,901.74 $113,901.74 $113,901.74

1.0 FTE Human Resources Tech., Including BERRA Salary/Benefits BERRA             $5,944.74 $116,564.12 $119,846.48 $119,846.48 $119,846.48

.50 FTE Human Resources Technician, Including Statutory Benefits 2402/7403 $46,970.46 $56,866.00 $56,866.00 $56,866.00

.50 FTE Human Resources Tech., Including BERRA Salary/Benefits BERRA             $2,972.37 $49,796.93 $60,224.93 $60,224.93 $60,224.93

.50 FTE Administrative Assistant III, Including Statutory Benefits 2402/7403 $51,885.47 $62,163.77 $62,163.77 $62,163.77

.50 FTE Administrative Assistant III, Including BERRA Salary/Benefits BERRA             $3,281.71 $55,004.39 $65,831.85 $65,831.85 $65,831.85

 Subs/Proctors, Including Statutory Benefits (Raters/Panelists) 2416/7403 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

 Hourly Overtime 2412/7403 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Unrestricted Total Salary Requests $663,135.34 $648,910.99 $609,650.91 $492,115.74

Total Salary Requests (Including restricted BERRA) $699,640.66 $684,168.80 $643,230.34 $518,762.30

Total Reduction from previous year $15,471.86 $56,410.32 $180,878.36

Other Items:

Books and Other Ref. Material 4200/7403 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Other Supplies/Classified Recognition/Reimbursements 4350/7403 $14,600.00 $11,600.00 $14,600.00 $14,600.00

Equipment 4400/7403 $7,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $7,000.00

Travel / Conference / Professional Development 5200/7403 $6,000.00 $2,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

Dues and Memberships 5300/7403 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Central Printing - Xerox 5712/7403 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Copier Lease - Intrafund 5713/7403 $4,320.00 $4,320.00 $4,320.00 $4,320.00

Phones 5920/7403 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Postage/Federal Express/Certified Mail 5910/7403 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

Total Other Items $39,420.00 $28,420.00 $35,420.00 $39,420.00

Prof/Consulting Svcs & Operating Expenses:

Legal Counsel 5829/7403 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00

Prof/Consulting Svcs 5800/7403 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Pre-Employment Screening  (physicals) 5800/7403 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00

Recruiting/Advertising 5800/7403 $14,500.00 $8,700.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00

Applications/Announcements/Copying 5800/7403 $13,314.00 $13,314.00 $13,314.00 $13,314.00

Testing 5800/7403 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Total Prof/Consulting Svcs & Operating Expenses $59,814.00 $54,014.00 $59,814.00 $59,814.00

GRAND TOTAL $798,874.66 $766,602.80 $738,464.34 $617,996.30

Total Reduction from previous year $32,271.86 $60,410.32 $180,878.36

BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT/PERSONNEL COMMISSION

PROPOSED BUDGET OPTIONS & IMPACT SUMMARY / FY 2025-2026

DATE:  July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026

ATTACHMENT D

35



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through June

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - GEN.FUND   

2302 301,000.00 298,786.00 28,631.08 149,705.21 120,449.71 CLASS SUPER & ADMIN MONTH SAL

2316 309.00 16,280.70 15,971.70-CLASS. SUPV - LIMITED TERM

2318 9,726.00 9,726.00-Paid Vacation

2402 105,152.00 107,136.00 18,930.66 95,570.60 7,365.26-CLERICAL TECH & OFC STAFF SAL

2412 1,052.00 5,705.00 23,768.72 18,063.72-CLERICAL TECH & OFC OVERTIME

2416 7,810.00 7,957.00 15,197.71 7,240.71-CLERICAL LIMITED TERM

2450 2,452.00 2,452.00 890.32 4,232.00 2,670.32-CASH IN LIEU OF BENEFITS

3202 112,261.00 81,268.00 12,865.44 67,952.01 450.55 PUBLIC EMPL. RET. SYS, CLASSIF

3302 5,888.00 5,951.00 696.64 4,074.74 1,179.62 MEDICARE - CLASSIFIED

3312 23,791.00 24,060.00 2,978.72 19,717.26 1,364.02 FICA - CLASSIFIED

3402 47,791.00 47,249.00 4,668.40 25,906.82 16,673.78 HEALTH & WELFARE BEN. CLASSIF.

3502 208.00 210.00 29.08 188.67 7.75-STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS. CLASSI

3602 10,642.00 10,754.00 1,235.54 8,019.30 1,499.16 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INS.CLSS

3702 3,751.00 3,790.00 436.08 2,826.24 527.68 RETIREE BENEFITS, CLASSIF. POS

4200 500.00 500.00 500.00 BOOKS & OTHER REF. MATERIALS

4350 11,000.00 7,592.00 332.51 3,816.30 3,443.19 OTHER SUPPLIES

4400 14,924.00 6,696.00 1,090.16 2,822.13 2,783.71 EQUIPMENT $500 TO $5,000

5200 3,750.00 6,000.00 2,013.38 3,702.19 284.43 TRAVEL AND CONFERENCES

5300 3,300.00 3,300.00 2,870.00 430.00 DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS

5712 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 CENTRAL PRINTING - XEROX

5713 4,320.00 4,320.00 4,320.00 COPIER LEASE - INTRAFUND

5800 48,440.00 41,560.00 1,885.00 35,090.47 4,584.53 PROF/CONSULTING SVCS & OPR EXP

5829 10,000.00 10,800.00 4,241.50 241.50 6,317.00 LEGAL FEES

5910 500.00 500.00 500.00 POSTAGE/MAILINGS

5920 1,250.00 267.78 982.22 .00 CELL PHONE / PAGERS

106,761.92 721,032.00 680,645.00 84,062.29 489,820.79 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 04 - BSEP 4   

2302 18,113.00 18,660.00 7,691.00 10,969.00 CLASS SUPER & ADMIN MONTH SAL

2316 951.97 951.97-CLASS. SUPV - LIMITED TERM

2402 46,027.00 47,482.00 6,741.96 38,272.98 2,467.06 CLERICAL TECH & OFC STAFF SAL

2412 250.12 250.12-CLERICAL TECH & OFC OVERTIME

2416 267.12 267.12-CLERICAL LIMITED TERM

2450 1,068.38 2,136.76 3,205.14-CASH IN LIEU OF BENEFITS

3202 17,351.00 17,351.00 1,823.70 11,657.50 3,869.80 PUBLIC EMPL. RET. SYS, CLASSIF

3302 924.00 954.00 113.26 1,105.05 264.31-MEDICARE - CLASSIFIED

3312 3,861.00 3,986.00 484.24 2,676.13 825.63 FICA - CLASSIFIED

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 14, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Period = 12, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Function = 7403, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Benjamin Zohar (BZOHAR14), May 21 2025  8:26AM014 - Berkeley Unified School District

ATTACHMENT D

36

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2316
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2318
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2412
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2416
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2450
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3702
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5712
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5713
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5829
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5910
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5920
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=2302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=2316
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=2402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=2412
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=2416
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=2450
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3312


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2024/25Balances through June

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 04 - BSEP 4    (continued)

3402 61.00 61.00 10.04 50.20 .76 HEALTH & WELFARE BEN. CLASSIF.

3502 33.00 35.00 4.68 29.76 .56 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT INS. CLASSI

3602 1,641.00 1,693.00 199.16 1,264.03 229.81 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INS.CLSS

3702 227.00 246.00 126.69 119.31 RETIREE BENEFITS, CLASSIF. POS

13,543.27 88,238.00 90,468.00 10,445.42 66,479.31 Total for Fund 04 and Expense accounts

120,305.19 809,270.00 771,113.00 94,507.71 556,300.10 Total for Org 014 - Berkeley Unified School District

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 14, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2025, Period = 12, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Function = 7403, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 0, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Benjamin Zohar (BZOHAR14), May 21 2025  8:26AM014 - Berkeley Unified School District

ATTACHMENT D

37

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=10983294&p2=14&p3=04&p8=Fund&p7=3702

	4_17_25 Personnel Commission Special Meeting Minutes DRAFT1.0
	Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 04_23_25 DRAFT
	Classified Personnel Supervisor 052825
	Eligibility List

	Educational Occupational Therapist 052825
	Eligibility List

	Grounds Gardener 052825
	Eligibility List

	Instructional Assistant II SPED 052825
	Eligibility List

	Instructional Tech, BASP 052825
	Eligibility List

	Payroll Specialist 052825
	Eligibility List

	B. Castillo Packet.pdf
	IMG_3879.pdf
	Request for Advance Step Placement
	Resume_Redacted.pdf
	Brandon Castillo 
	EXPERIENCE 
	Golden State Lumber,  Newark CA— Forklift Driver/ Delivery Driver 
	MAY 2020 - JANUARY 2021 

	●​During my time at GSL, I was a forklift driver that specialized in building bundles of lumber for customers as well as loading and delivering bundles of lumber to job sites. Here I received my forklift certification as well as experience in a lumber warehouse experience.  
	Jetro Cash & Carry Depot, Oakland CA— Associate/ Loader 
	MAY 2019 - MAY  2020 

	●​At Jetro Cash & Carry I was a detail-oriented cashier with experience handling large cash transactions accurately. Delivered exceptional customer service by addressing complaints and fulfilling requests. Assisted customers by safely loading food products into their vehicles and actively promoted sales through engaging interactions. At Jetro Cash & Carry  I received my Forklift certification as well as my food handlers card. I gained food warehouse and safe food handling experience during my time here. 
	Castillo’s Concrete, Bay Area— Construction Worker 
	JANUARY 2021 - PRESENT  

	●​Experienced in construction with skills in framework assembly, Concrete pouring and finishing,  site excavation, and contract management for projects valued in the multiple thousands of dollars. Drafted and typed contracts for the company and regularly met with clients to discuss and plan future projects. At Castillo’s Concrete I was doing manual labor on a day to day basis as well as delivering materials from and to job sites around the Bay Area . 

	EDUCATION 
	Skyline High School, Oakland CA— High School Diploma 
	AUGUST 2014 - MAY 2019 


	SKILLS 
	AWARDS 
	LANGUAGES 


	Packet_Redacted.pdf
	Flyer- Adv Step Request- K. Kersey
	Kara_Kersey_AdvStep_ReqForm
	Kara_Kersey_AdvStep_Req_ltr
	Kara Kersey Resume 2025
	KaraKerseyRecLetter by CharlieMartin
	Letter Of Reference from Ayo Chaney

	Packet_Redacted.pdf
	Flyer-ADV Step P. Regan
	P.Regan AdvStep Req Form
	Letter to Chairperson of the step commission
	Regan CV
	Regan CV_1.pdf
	Regan CV_2.pdf

	Roscigno Reference_Regan

	Flyer-ADV 25-26 Budget 2nd Reading and Public Hearing.pdf
	2025-2026 PC BUDGET_4th Draft
	Budget Proposals #2

	2025 05.21 Personel Commision Fiscal01
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	14
	01
	
	
	
	5
	2302
	2316
	2318
	2402
	2412
	2416
	2450
	3202
	3302
	3312
	3402
	3502
	3602
	3702
	4200
	4350
	4400
	5200
	5300
	5712
	5713
	5800
	5829
	5910
	5920





	04
	
	
	
	5
	2302
	2316
	2402
	2412
	2416
	2450
	3202
	3302
	3312
	3402
	3502
	3602
	3702









	Personnel Activity for April.pdf
	April 25


	Name: Patricia regan
	Classification: Sped asst 2
	Hire Date: Asap?
	Site: Berkeley
	UnitsSome College: 
	TypeDepthConcentrationSome College: 
	Education LevelRow1: 
	UnitsAssociates Degree: 
	TypeDepthConcentrationAssociates Degree: 
	Education LevelRow2: 
	UnitsBachelors Degree: 
	TypeDepthConcentrationBachelors Degree: See transcripts
	Education LevelRow3: x
	UnitsMasters Degree: 
	TypeDepthConcentrationMasters Degree: See transcripts
	Education LevelRow4: 
	UnitsPhDDoctorate: 
	TypeDepthConcentrationPhDDoctorate: 
	Employment Type Education Government Public Private etc12 years: 
	Experience LevelRow1: 
	Employment Type Education Government Public Private etc35 years: 
	Experience LevelRow2: 
	Employment Type Education Government Public Private etc69 years: 
	Experience LevelRow3: 
	Employment Type Education Government Public Private etc1015 years: 
	Experience LevelRow4: x
	Employment Type Education Government Public Private etc15 years: See cv. 7 yrs in schools. Significant mangement
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Yes
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Yes
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off


